BYLAWS

OF

RANCHO SAN CLEMENTE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

36258/DGB/05388/16973 klh/03-12-85

WEATTRICK JACKSON
OF WARCO & PECKENPAUGH
HOMENPORADEN
A WAR ENDORADEN

I

85-327173

TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR BYLAWS OF RANCHO SAN CLEMENTE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

DESCRIPTION			PAGE NO
ARTICLE I	Plan	OF OWNERSHIP	1
Section	1.01	Name	1
		Application .	ī
		Meaning of Terms	ī
	••••		•
ARTICLE II		ng by master association Ership	1
Section	2.01	Voting	1
Section	2.02	Majority of Quorum	. 1
Section	2.03	Quorum	Ž
ARTICLE III			2
Section	3.01		_
		Responsibilities	2
Section			2
Section			2
Section			2
Section	3.05	Notice of Meetings	3
Section	3.06	Adjourned Meetings	3
Section	3.07	Order of Business	3
Section	3.08	Order of Business Action by Written Ballot	2 2 2 2 3 3 3 4
Section	3.09	Consent of Absentees	4
Section	3.10	Minutes, Presumption of Notice	4
ARTICLE IV	BOARI	O OF DIRECTORS	4
Section	4 61	Wighon and August Standar	•
		Number and Qualification	4 5 5
Section			2
Section Section			2
			9
Section			. 9
Section			10
Section		Vacancies	12
Section			12
Section			13
		Regular Meetings	13
Section			13
Section	4.12	Waiver of Notice	14
Section	4.13	Action Without Meeting	14
Section	4.14	Action Without Meeting Quorum and Adjourment	14
Section	4.15	Fidelity Bonds	15
Section	4.16	Committees	15
ARTICLE V		OFFICERS	15
Section	5.01	Designation	15
Section	5.02	Election of Officers	15
		Zamovel of Officers	15

-1-

1

3625S/DGB/QS38S/15973 klh/01-07-8S

MENITRICK MERSON OF ATURE & COUNTY MENITRICK MERSON OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PRO

MOUSTANCE ACCESSOR TO THE POST OF THE POST

KTP\01-01-82 3e52e\DCB\02383\1e313

-11-

CZ	CESTIFICATE OF SECRETARY
ZZ	Section 12.04 Heating
ĬŽ	Section 12.03 Notice of Hearing
20	Section 12.02 Weitten Complaint
20	section 12.01 Suspension of Privileges
20	ARTICLE XII NOTICE AND HEARING PROCEDURE
6T	Section 11.05 Membership Register
61	SOCETOR IT OF ETACHT KONE
6 T	section il.O3 inapection of Bylaws
6T	Section Il.Oz Execution of Documents
6 T	Section 11.01 Checks, Drafts and Documents
61	ARTICLE XI MISCELLAMEOUS
61	OEEICEFR VELICEFR VEL
	THE PERSON OF THE PERSON AND THE PER
BI	ARTICLE IX CONFLICTING PROVISIONS
78	Section 8.02 Notice of Unpaid Assessments
18	Section 8.01 Notice to Master Association
81	ARTICLE VIII MORTOAGEES
81	ARTICLE VII AMENDMENTS TO BYLANS
41	riages bas sommerates 20.8 notross
Ζi	Section 6.02 Assessments
	10 3 notang
41	ARTICLE VI OBLIGATIONS OF NEMBERS
91	Section 5.08 Tressurer
91	yastean 5.07 Secretary
žį	Section 5.06 Vice President
žė	Section 5.05 President
śi	Saction 5.04 Compensation
	animonated An 2 moltans.
PAGE NO.	DESCRIBLION

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued)

BYLAWS

OF

RANCHO SAN CLEMENTE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I

PLAN OF OWNERSHIP

Section 1.01. Name. The name of the corporation is RANCHO SAN CLEMENTE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, hereinafter referred to as the "Master Association." The principal office of the Master Association shall be located in the County of Orange, State of California.

Section 1.02. Application. The provisions of these Bylaws are applicable to the residential master planned community development known as RANCHO SAN CLEMENTE, located in the City of San Clemente, County of Orange, State of California. All present and future Owners and their tenants, future tenants, employees, and any other person who might use the facilities of the Properties in any manner, are subject to the regulations set forth in these Bylaws and in the Master Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, and Reservation of Easements for RANCHO SAN CLEMENTE (the "Master Declaration" herein) recorded or to be recorded in the Office of the Orange County Recorder and applicable to the Properties. The mere acquisition or rental of any Lot or Condominium in the Properties or the mere act of occupancy of any Lot or Condominium will signify that these Bylaws are accepted, ratified, and will be complied with.

Saction 1.03. Meaning of Terms. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, the capitalized terms used in these Bylavs shall have the same meaning as are given to such terms in the Master Declaration.

ARTICLE II

VOTING BY MASTER ASSOCIATION NEMBERSHIP

Section 2.01. Voting. Members shall elect Delegates to act on their behalf as set forth in Article IV of the Master Declaration. The Classes of voting Memberships, the number of votes (i.e., voting power) held or represented by each Delegate, the manner in which Members shall elect Delegates, and the manner in which each Delegate shall cast votes held by her or him shall be as set forth in the Master Declaration, and the provisions of the Master Declaration governing all such matters (including, without limitation, the special approval procedures for Specified Actions pursuant to Section 4.04(c) of the Master Declaration) are specifically incorporated by reference herein.

Section 2.02. Majority of Quorum. Unless otherwise expressly provided in these Sylaws or the Master Declaration, any action which may be taken by the Delegates shall require the vote of a majority of a quorum of the Delegates of the Master Association. If, however, a meeting is actually attended by

-1-

36255/DC8. OS385/16973 vlt/10-19-84

MARITERS & PERENDAN DO MARCO & PERENDANGN A NAM SERROSSINA

Delegates representing less than one-third (1/3) of the voting power of the Master Association, notwithstanding the presence of a quorum, no matter may be voted upon except such natters notice of the general nature of which was given pursuant to Section 3.05 hereof. As used in the Restrictions, reference to a specified percentage "of Delegates" shall mean those Delegates representing such specified percentage of the voting power of the membership in the Master Association.

Section 2.03. Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the presence in person of the Delegates representing at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the voting power of the Master Association shall constitute a quorum of the membership. The Delegates present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Delegates to leave less than a quorum. Delegates may only act personally at a meeting of the Delegates of the Master Association or by written ballot, and may not act by proxy.

ARTICLE III

ADMINISTRATION

Section 3.01. Master Association Responsibilities. In accordance with the provisions of the Master Declaration, the Master Association shall have the responsibility of administering the Association Property, approving the annual budget, establishing and collecting all assessments applicable to the Association Property or authorized pursuant to the Master Declaration, and arranging for the overall architectural control of the Properties.

Section 3.02. Place of Meetings of Delegates. Meetings of the Delegates shall be held on the Properties or such other suitable place in Orange County, as proximate thereto as practicable and convenient to the Delegates, as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 3.03. Annual Meetings of Delegates. The first annual meeting of Delegates shall be held within forty-five (45) days after fifty-one percent (51%) of the escrows for the sale of all of the Lots and Condominiums in the First Subdivision have closed or within six (6) months after the first Close of Escrow for the sale of a Lot or Condominium in the First Subdivision, whichever occurs first. Thereafter, the annual meetings of Delegates shall be held on or about the annual meetings of the first annual meeting. At each annual meeting there shall be elected by ballot of the Delegates a Board of Directors, in accordance with the requirements of Section 4.05 of these Bylaws. Each first Mortgages of a Lot or Condominium in the Properties may designate a representative to attend all annual meetings of the Delegates. The annual meetings of the Delegates shall be open to attendance by all Members and Mortgages representatives to the extent of the permissible capacity of the meeting room.

Saction 3.04. Special Meetings of Delegates. It shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the Delegates, as directed by resolution of a majority of a

-2-

. .

36255/2GB/G5395/15973 sat/10-26-84

WEXITTECK JACASON OF MARCO & PECKENPAUGH LUM GORPORATION quorum of the Board of Directors, or upon a petition being presented to the Secretary signed by Delegates representing at least five percent (5%) of the total voting power of the Master Association. The notice of any special meeting shall be given within twenty (20) days after adoption of such resolution or receipt of such petition and shall state the time and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. The special meeting shall be held not less than thirty-five (35) days nor more than ninety (90) days after adoption of such resolution or receipt of such petition. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice. Each first Mortgagee of a Lot or Condominium in the Properties may designate a representative to attend all special meetings of the Delegates. The special meetings of the Delegates shall be open to attendance by all Members and by Mortgagee representatives to the extent of the permissible capacity of the meeting room.

Section 3.05. Notice of Meetings. It shall be the duty of the Secretary to send to each Delegate a notice of each annual or special meeting by first-class mail, at least sixty (60) but not more than ninety (90) days prior to such meeting, stating the purpose thereof as well as the day, hour and place where it is to be held, to each Delegate of record, the Class C Member (if Directors are to be elected at such meeting), and to each first Mortgagee of a Lot or Condominium, which Mortgagee has filed a written request for notice with the Secretary. The notice may set forth time limits for speakers and nominating procedures for the meeting. The notice of any meeting at which Directors are to be elected shall include the names of all those who are nominees at the time the notice is given to the Delegates. The mailing of a notice, postage prepaid, in the manner provided in this Section, shall be considered notice served forty-eight (48) hours after such notice has been deposited in a regular depository of the United States mail. Such notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place on the Association Property, and such notice shall be deemed served upon any Delegate upon posting if no address has been furnished the Secretary.

Section 3.06. Adjourned Meetings. If any meeting of Delegates cannot be organized because a quorum is not present, a majority of the Delegates who are present may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) days nor more than thirty (30) days from the time the original meeting was called. Such an adjourned meeting may be held without notice thereof as provided in this Article III, provided that notice is given by announcement at the meeting at which such adjournment is taken.

Section 3.07. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Delegates shall be as follows: (a) appointment of inspector of election; (b) roll call to determine the voting power represented at the meeting; (c) proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice; (d) reading of minutes of preceding meeting; (e) reports of officers; (f) reports of committees; (g) election of Directors (at annual meetings or special meetings held for such purpose); (h) unfinished business; and (i) new business. Meetings of Delegates shall be conducted by the officers of the Master Association, in order of their authority.

* . *

Section 3.08. Action By Written Ballot. Any action which may be taken at a meeting of the Delegates (except for election of Directors) may be taken without a meeting by written ballot of the Delegates. Ballots shall be solicited in the same manner as provided in Section 3.05 for the giving of notice of meetings of Delegates. Such solicitations shall specify (a) the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirements, (b) the percentage of approvals necessary to approve the action, (c) the time by which ballots must be received in order to be counted, and (d) that in order to be effective, the ballot must contain the Delegate's certification of the information required pursuant to Section 4.04(d) of the Master Declaration. The form of written ballot shall (a) afford an opportunity to specify the choice between approval and disapproval of each matter, (b) provide that, where the Delegate specifies a choice, the vote shall be cast in accordance therewith, and (c) contain spaces for the Delegate's certification of the information required pursuant to Section 4.04(d) of the Master Declaration. Receipt within the time period specified in the solicitation of a number of ballots which equals or exceeds the quormum which would be required if the action were taken at a meeting, and a number of approvals which exceeds or equals the number of votes which would be required for approval if the action were taken at a meeting at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the total number of ballots cast, shall constituted approval by

Section 3.09. Consent of Absentees. The transactions of any meeting of the Delegates, either annual or special, however called and noticed, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if a quorum be present, and if, either before or after the meeting, each of the Delegates not present signs a written waiver of notice, or a consent to the holding of such meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents or approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the meeting.

Section 3.10. Minutes, Presumption of Notice. Minutes or a similar record of the proceedings of meetings of Delegates, when signed by the President or Secretary, shall be presumed truthfully to evidence the matters set forth therein. A recitation in the minutes of any such meeting that notice of the meeting was properly given shall be prima facie evidence that such notice was given.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 4.01. Number and Qualification. The property, business and affairs of the Master Association shall be governed by a Board of Directors composed of five (5) persons, each of whom, except for those appointed and serving as first Directors, must either be an Owner of a Lot or Condominium in the Properties, or an agent of Declarant or an agent of a Participating Suilder for so long as Declarant or a Participating Builder owns a Lot or Condominium in the Annexable Area. The authorized number of Directors may be changed by a duly adopted amendment to the Bylaws. Directors shall not receive any salary or compensation for their services as Directors, unless such compensation is first approved by the vote of Delegates representing at least a majority of the voting power of the Master

-4-

36255/DG8/05385/16973 vlt/10-29-84

İ

c) The power but not the duty to change the principal of the business of the basical of the business of the Master Association from one location to association the Broperties are shoother within the County in Which the Broperties are located, as provided in Arricle I hereof; to designate located, as principal in Arricle I hereof to designate any place within such county for the bolding of any

(b) The power and duty to conduct, manage and concrol the Affatrs and business of the Master and Association, and to make and enforce such Rules and Regulations therefor consistent with law, with the Articles of Incorporation, the Master Declaration and These Bylaws, as the Board may deem necessary or advisable.

(a) The power and duty to select, appoint, and amployees of the sample of title powers and duty to select, standers, and employees of the and to prescribe such powers and duties for them as may be consistent with law, with the Articles of Incorporation, the Master Declaration and there Bylaws; to fix their compensation (where componsation is permitted) and to require from them security for faithful service when deemed advisable by the Board.

Section 4.03. Special Powers and Dutles, Without prejudice to such foregoing general powers and dutles as are set forth in the Master Declaration, the Board of Directors is vested with the following powers and dutles:

Section 4.02. Sowers and Duties. The Board of the Station 4.02. Sowers and Duties. The Board of the Stations of the Asster Association and may do all tration of the affeirs of the Asster Association and may do all directed to be exercised and done exclusively by the Members acting through the Delegates. The Board of Directors shall not enter into any contract for a term in excess of one (1) year, without the vore of Delegates representing a majority of the voring power of the Mester Association, except for (1) year, by the Fublic Utilities Commission (such as Southern California by the Fublic Utilities Commission (such as Southern California by the Fublic Utilities Commission (such as Southern California thousing power of the Mester Association (such as Southern California by the Fublic Utilities Commission (such as Southern California thousing Administration (such as Southern California the Bederal Dy the Voterans Administration or the Bederal Housing Administration; (3) prepaid casualty or liability incomer of the Mester Association; (4) lesse agreements for lauration by the Waster Association; (4) lesse agreements for Isundry woom or table talentsion services, fixtures and equipment of not to exceed five (5) years duration, provided that the lessor or exple taleur any such agreement is not an antity in which the subblivider has a direct or indirect ownership interest of ten percent (10%) or more.

Association; provided, however, that (1) nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any Director from serving the Mester Association in some other capacity and receiving compensation therefor, and (2) any Director may be reimbursed for his actual expanses incurred in the performance of such Director's duties. annual or special meeting or meetings of Delegates consistent with the provisions of Article III, Section 3.02 hereof: and to adopt and use a corporate seal and to alter the form of such seal from time to time, as the Board, in its sole judgment, may deem best, provided that such seal shall at all times comply with the provisions of law.

- (d) With the approval of Delegates representing at least sixty-seven (67%) percent of the voting power of the Master Association, the power but not the duty to borrow money and to incur indebtedness for the purposes of the Master Association, and to cause to be executed and delivered therefor, in the Master Association's name, promissory note, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations or other evidences of debt and securities therefor.
- (e) The power and duty to fix and levy from time to time Common Assessments, Special Assessments, and Reconstruction Assessments upon the Members of the Master Association as provided in the Master Declaration; to fix and levy from time to time in any fiscal year Capital Improvement Assessments applicable to that year only for capital improvements to the Association Property; to determine and fix the due date for the payment of such assessments, and the date upon which the same shall become delinquent; provided, however, that such assessments shall be fixed and levied only to provide for the payment of the Common Expenses of the Master Association and of taxes and assessments upon real or personal property owned, leased, controlled or occupied by the Master Association, or for the payment of expenses for labor rendered or materials or supplies used and consumed, or equipment and appliances furnished for the maintenance, improvement or development of such property or for the payment of any and all obliquations in relation thereto, or in performing or causing to be performed any of the purposes of the Master Association for the general benefit and welfare of its Members, in accordance with the provisions of the Master Declaration. Subject to any limitations imposed by the Declaration and these Bylavs, the Board of Directors shall have the power and duty to incur any and all such expenditures for any of the foregoing purposes and to provide or cause to be provided, adequate reserves for replacements as it shall deem to be necessary or advisable in the interest of the Master Association or welfare of its Members. The Master Association of welfare of its Members. funds collected by the Board of Directors from the Members, attributable for replacement reserves, for maintenance costs which cannot normally be expected to occur on an annual basis and for capital improvements, shall at all times be held in trust for the Members. Disbursements from such trust reserve fund shall be made only in accordance with the provisions of the Master Declaration. Such Common Assassments, Reconstruction Assessments, Special Assessments and Capital Improvement Assessments shall be fixed in accordance with the provisions of the Master Declaration. Should

•

· * · · •

any Members fail to pay such assessment before delinquency, the Board of Directors in its discretion is authorized to enforce the payment of such delinquent assessments as provided in the Master Declaration and these Bylaws.

- (f) The power and duty to enforce the provisions of the Master Declaration, the Rules and Requiations, these Sylaws or other agreements of the Master Association.
- (g) The power and duty to contract for and pay premiums for, with respect to the Association Property, fire, casualty, blanket liability, malicious mischief, vandalism, liquor liability, errors and omissions, and other insurance insuring the Members, the Master Association, any Manager, the Board of Directors, the members of the Architectural Committee, and other interested parties, in accordance with the provisions of the Master Declaration, covering and protecting against such damages or injuries as the Board deems advisable (which may include without limitation, medical expenses of persons injured on the Association Property).
- (h) The power and duty to contract for and pay maintenance, legal, accounting, gardening, common utilities (from any public utility, mutual water company or water production and distribution system owned by the Master Association), materials and supplies, and services relating to the Association Property and to employ personnel necessary for the operation of the Properties, including legal and accounting services, and to contract for and pay for Improvements on the Association Property.
- (i) The power but not the duty to establish such advisory committees as the Board may deem advisable and to delegate its powers according to law, and subject to amendment by the Delegates, to adopt these Bylaws.
- (1) The power but not the duty to grant easements where necessary for utilities and sewer facilities over the Association Property to serve the Association Property or any portion of the Properties.
- (k) The power and duty to adopt such Rules and Regulations as the Board may deem necessary for the management of the Properties, which Rules and Regulations shall become effective and binding after (1) they are adopted by a majority of the entire Board at a meeting called for that purpose, and (2) they are posted in a conspicuous place in the Association Property. Such Rules and Regulations may concern, without limitation, use of the Association Property; signs, parking restrictions; common collection and disposal of refuse; minimum standards of property maintenance consistent with the Master Declaration, use of the R.V. Storage Area, if any, and the procedures of the

-7-

36253/EGB/C5385/18973

MOENDAL JOHNTINES MOUVANDADES CORAS MOITANOMED WAS

MCKITTRICK, JACKEON OF MARCO & PECKENAGO A LAM COMPONINGS

. 1

and enter into subsidy agreements or other arrangements and enter into subsidy agreements or other arrangements of other arrangements of other arrangements of other arrangement to all declarant and Participating Buliders payable which Declarant or such Participating Buliders will subsidize a portion of the Common Assessments by the Members in exchange for the assumption by the Master Association of the obligation to repair and maintain additional real property and Improvements which it would not be able to so maintain absent such a subsidy. Any such subsidy agreements or other arrangements shall be first approved by the DRE and VA or TAB and shall have terms which are fair and equitable to the Members of the Master Association.

-8-

(o) The power and duty to make available to any prospective purchaser of a Lot or Condominium, any prospective purchaser of a Lot or Condominium, any first Mortgages, and the Lot or Condominium, any first Mortgage on any Lot or Condominium, current copies of Mortgage on any Lot or Condominium, current copies of Mortgage on any Lot or Gondominium, current copies of the Master Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws, Rules and Regulations and all other books, secords and financial statements of the Master Association. The Master Association may impose a fee for action. The Master Association may impose a fee for action of the Master Association and in the see for action of the Master Association and in the see for action of the Master Association and in the see for action of the Master Association and in the see for action. The Master Association and in the see for action of the Master Association and in the see for action of the Master Association and Indiana and I

(n) The power but not the duty to act as the management agent for any Sub-Associations within the Properties, and to charge a reasonable fee for such management services.

(m) The power not the duty to sell property of the Mester Association, provided, however, that the prior vote of Delegates representing at least sevency-five percent (75%) of the voting power of the Master Association must be obtained to sell during any fiscal year property of the Master Association having an addregate fair market value greater than five percent (5%) of the budgeted greas expenses of the Association for the Listan Parket value greater than five percent (5%) of the budgeted greas expenses of the Association for that fiscal year.

(1) The power and duty to keep, or cause to be kept, a complete record of all acts and corporate affairs of the Master Association and to present a statement thereof to the Delegates at the annual meeting of the Delegates and at any other time that such attacement is requested by Delegates representing at least ten percent (10%) of the Members who are entitled to vote.

Architectural Committee: and any other matter within the jurisdiction of the Master Association as provided in the Master Declaration; provided, however, that such Rules and Requistions shall be enforceable only to the Sarier that the Charticles and these Sylaws, and the Rules and Requistions may not be used to amend any of such documents.

82-352123

Section 4.04. Management Agent. The Board of Direcpensation established by the Board to perform auch duties and
services as the Board shall sutherize, which may include, withArticle. Such agreement, and any contract providing for services by Declarant, must provide for termination by either party
for cause upon no more than thirty (30) days written notice, and
without cause nor payment of a termination fee, upon no more
than ninety (90) days prior written notice.

Section 4.05. Election and Term of Office

- and thereafter at each annual meeting of the Delegates, new Discretes shall be alected by secret written ballot by the Delegates as provided in these Bylaws, and all postitions on the Board of Directors shall be filled at the Belection. If an annual meeting is not haid, or election on the Board of Directors shall be filled at the Belection. If an annual meeting is not haid, or elected thereat, the Board may be for that purpose. Each Director shall haid office a factod at any special meeting of the Delegates hed for that purpose. Each Director shall haid office a dath, resoval or judicial adjudication of meeting in the for that purpose. Each Director shall haid office of mental incompetence. Subject to Section first annual meeting of the Delegates, the three (3) birectors receiving the highest number of votes shall each be alected for a term of three (3) years. At each annual meeting therefore the clark of the beleatest of two (2) birectors receiving the highest number of years. At each annual meeting thereafted by the read of the term of two (2) years. Following the first annual meeting, the term of selected by the sanitations of the term of two (2) years. The term of the term of selected to fill a vacancy created by the realignation, death or semantal of the presence of the term of his predecessor. Any there and the number of the parts and the his votes for any other late has deen placed in nearly any each of the number - (b) Notwitstanding the foregoing, whenever (l) notice is given for an election of Directors of the Board and (2) upon such date Declarant is entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power of the

Ť

Master Association, and (3) upon such date the Delegator representing Members other than Declarant and any Participating Builders do not have a sufficient percentage of the voting power of the Master Association to elect a number of Directors representing at least twenty percent (20%) (though not less than one (1)) of the entire Board through the foregoing cumulative voting procedure, then such notice shall also provide for the following special election procedure. Election of Directors shall be first apportioned to Members other than Declarant and any Participating Builders until the aggregate number of Directors on the Board elected by Delegates casting votes attributable to Members other than Declarant and any Participating Builders represents at least twenty percent (20%) (though not less than one (1)) of the entire Board (e.g., the Delegates shall insure that at least Board (e.g., the Delegates shall insure that at least one (1) Director is an Owner not connected directly or indirectly with Declarant or any Participating Builder ("nonaffiliated Owner") for so long as a majority of the voting power of the Master Association is attributable to Lots or Condominiums owned by Declarant and Participating Builders). Any nonaffiliated Owner shall be an eligible candidate for the special election upon receipt by the Secretary of a Declarant on of Candidate receipt by the Secretary of a Declaration of Candidacy, signed by the candidate, at any time prior to the election. Such election shall be by secret ballot unless a majority of the Delegates representing Members other than the Declarant and Participating Builders determine otherwise. The nonaffiliated Owners receiving the greatest number of votes cast by the Delegates representing Members other than Declarant or any Participating Builders shall be elected to the Board in a co-equal capacity with all other Directors. The remaining Hembers on the Soard shall be elected through the customary cumulative voting procedure outlined above.

Section 4.06 Books, Audit. The following financial information shall be prepared and distributed by the Board to all Members (and any Beneficiary, insurer and guarantor of a first Mortgage upon request), regardless of the number of Members or the amount of assets of the Master Association:

- (a) A budget for each fiscal year consisting of at least the following information shall be distributed within 60 days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.
 - (1) The estimated revenue and Common Expenses of the Master Association computed on an accrual basis.
 - (2) The amount of the total cash reserves of the Master Association currently available for replacement or major repair of the Association Property and for contingencies.
 - (3) An itemized estimate of the remaining life of, and the rethods of funding to defray

. . . .

repair and replacement of, or additions to, major components of the Association Property and facilities for which the Master Association is responsible.

- (4) A general statement setting forth the procedures used by the Board in the calculation and establishment of reserves to defray the costs of repair and replacement of, or additions to, asjor components of the Association Property and facilities for which the Master Association is responsible.
- (b) A balance sheet as of an accounting date which is the last day of the month closest in time to six (6) months from the date of the first Close of Escrow for the sale of a Lot or Condominium in the Properties and an operating statement for the period from the date of the first Close of Escrow to the said accounting date, shall be distributed within sixty (60) days after the accounting date. Such operating statement shall include a schedule of assessments received and receivable identified by the number of the Lot or Condominium and the name of the Owner assessed.
- (c) A report consisting of the following shall be distributed within one hundred twenty (120) days after the close of the fiscal year.
 - (I) A balance sheet as of the end of the fiscal year.
 - (2) An operating (income) statement for the fiscal year.
 - (3) A statement of changes in financial position for the fiscal year.
 - (4) Any information required to be reported under Section 8322 of the California Corporations Code.
 - (5) For any fiscal year in which the gross income to the Master Association exceeds \$75,000, a copy of a review of the annual report prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles by a licensee of the California State Board of Accountancy.

If the report referred to above is not prepared by an independent accountant, it shall be accompanied by the certificate of an authorized officer of the Master Association stating that the statement was prepared from the books and records of the Master Association without independent audit or review.

In addition to financial statements, the Board shall annually distribute within sixty (60) days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year a statement of the Master Association's policies and practices in enforcing its remedies against

-11-

٦

36255/DGB/05385/16973 klb/01-07-85

WGRITTRICK JACKSON DE WARCE & GEORETPAUGH A WAREFORETHAN

1

Members for defaults in the payment of Common, Capital Improvement, Reconstruction and Special Assessments, including the recording and foreclosing of liens against Members' Lots and

All books, records and papers of the Master Association shall be made available for inspection by any Member, prospective purchasers of a Lot or Condominium, and any holder, insurer or quarantor of any first Mortgage or their duly appointed as the principal place of business of the Master representative at the principal place of business of the Master Association or at such other place within the Properties as the Board may prescribe. The Board shall establish reasonable rules with respect to (1) notice to be given to the Custodian of the records by the persons desiring to make the inspection, (2) (3) payment of the cost of reproducing copies of requested reasonable time to inspect all hooks, records and documents. Every Director shall have the absolute right at any the Master Association, and the physical properties owned or controlled by the Master Association. The right of inspection by a Director shall include the right to make extracts and

Section 4.07. Vacancies. Vacancies in the Board of Directors caused by any reason other than the removal of a shall be filled by a vote of the Delegates of the Master Association Directors, even though they may constitute less than a querum; and each person so elected shall be a Director until a successor Master Association, or at a special meeting of the Delegates of the case of death, resignation, removal or judicial adjudication of sential to elect the full number of authorized Directors at any not filled by the Directors may be filled by vote of the Delegates purpose.

Section 4.08. Removal of Directors. At any regular or special meeting of the Delegates duly called, any individual Directors or the entire Board may be removed prior to the expiration of their terms of office with or without cause as follows: (i) for so long as fewer than fifty (50) Lots and Condominiums are included within the Properties, by the vote of the Master Association (including votes attributable to Declarant and Participating Builders), and (ii) once fifty (50) or more Lots and Condominiums are included within the Properties, by the vote of Delegates representing a majority of a quorum of the Delegates. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the entire single vote, no individual Director shall be removed if the elect such Director is not removed as a group pursuant to a number of votes cast against his removal would be sufficient to which the same total number of votes were cast and the entire mumber of Directors authorized at the time of the Director's whose removal has been proposed by the Delegates shall be given

an opportunity to be heard at the meeting. If any or all of the Directors are so removed at a meeting, new Directors may be elected at the same meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Director who has been elected to office solely by the votes of Delegates representing Nembers other than Declarant or Participating Builders pursuant to Section 4.05(b) of this Article IV may be removed from office prior to the expiration of his term of office only by the vote of Delegates representing a simple majority of the voting power rasiding in Members other than Declarant and any Participating Builder; and, in the event of such removal, such Director's successor shall be elected in the same manner as such Director, pursuant to the provisions of Section 4.05(b) hereof.

Section 4.09. Organization Meeting. The first reqular ("organization") meeting of a newly elected Board of Directors shall be held at such time and place as shall be determined
by the newly constituted Board, for the purpose of organization,
election of officers and the transaction of other business. No
notice shall be necessary to the newly elected Directors in
order legally to constitute such meeting; provided that (1) a
majority of the whole Board shall be present when the time and
place are announced at the Membership meeting, and (2) the
organization meeting is held on the same day and at the same
place as the meeting of Delegates at which the newly constituted
Board was elected.

Section 4.10. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to the Members, to the extent of the permissible capacity of the meeting room, and may be held at such time and place within the Properties (or as proximate thereto as possible) as shall be determined, from time, by a resolution adopted by a majority of a quorum of the Directors provided, however, that such meetings shall be held no less frequently than quarterly. Notice of the time and place of regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given to each Director, personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, at least four (4) days prior to the date named for such meeting, and shall be posted at a prominent place or places within the Association Property. Members in attendance who are not Directors may not participate in any deliberation or discussion, unless expressly so authorized by the vote of a majority of a quorum of the Directors.

Section 4.11. Special Meetings of Board. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be open to all Members, to the extent of the permissible capacity of the meeting room; provided that Members who are not Directors may not participate in any deliberations or discussions at such special meetings, unless expressly so authorized by a vote of a majority of a quorum of the Board of Directors. Special meetings may be called by the President (or, if he is absent or refuses to act, by the Vice President) or by any two (2) Directors. At least four (4) days notice shall be given to each Director, personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place (as hereinabove provided) and the purpose of the meeting, and shall be posted at a prominent place or places within the Association Property. If served by mail, each such notice shall be sent, postage prepaid, to the address reflected on the records of the Master Association, and shall be deemed

-:3-

36258, DCB/C5388/16973 sat/10-26-84

1

. . . .

given, if not actually received earlier, at 5:00 o'clock P.M. on the second day after it is deposited in a regular depository of the United States mail as provided herein. Whenever any Director has been absent from any special meeting of the Board, an entry in the minutes to the effect that notice has been duly given shall be conclusive and incontrovertible evidence that due notice of such meeting was given to such Director, as required by law and as provided herein.

Section 4.12. Waiver of Notice. Before or at any meeting of the Board of Directors, any Director may, in writing, waive personal notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a Director at any meeting of the Board shall be a waiver of personal notice by him of the time and place thereof. If all the Directors are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice to Directors shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting. The transactions of any meeting of the Board, however called and noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though had at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if (1) a quorum be present, (2) notice to the Members of such meeting was posted as provided in Section 4.10 of this Article IV, and (3) either before or after the meeting, each of the Directors not present signs such a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding such meeting, or an approval of the Minutes thereof. All such waivers, consents and approvals shall be filed with the records of the Master Association or made a part of the Minutes of the meeting.

Section 4.13. Action Without Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board may be taken without a meeting, if all Directors individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of such Directors. An explanation of any action taken by unanimous written consent without a meeting shall be posted by the Board in a prominent place or places on the Association Property within three (3) days after the written consents of all Directors have been obtained.

Section 4.14. Quorum and Adjournment. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, at all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the acts of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board of Directors. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors there is less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time. At any such adjourned meeting, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without further notice. The Board may, with the approval of a majority of a quorum of the Directors, adjourn a meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss and vote upon personnel matters, litigation in which the Master Association is or may become involved and orders of business of a similar nature. The nature of any and all business to be considered in executive session shall first

-14-

!!

36255/CCB/C5385/169~3 sat/10-26-84

...

ЧСКІТЯНСЯ, ЈАСКВОН ОД МАЯСО В РЕСКЕНРАЦИИ В БАМ СОМИДАПОИ Section 4.15. Fidelity Bonds. The Board of Directors may require that all officers and employees and the Manager of the Master Association handling or responsible for Master Association funds shall furnish adequate fidelity bonds as further provided in the Master Declaration. The premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the Master Association.

Section 4.16. Committees. The Board of Directors, by resolution, may from time to time designate such committees as it shall desire, and may establish the purposes and powers of each such committee created. The resolution designating and establishing the committee shall provide for the appointment of its members, as well as a chairman, shall state the purposes of the committee, and shall provide for reports, termination, and other administrative matters as deemed appropriate by the Board. The provisions of this Section 4.16 shall not apply to the Architectural Committee created pursuant to Article IX of the Master Declaration.

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS

Section 5.01. <u>Designation</u>. The principal officers of the Master Association shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may appoint an Assistant Treasurer and an Assistant Secretary, and such other officers as in their judgment may be necessary. Officers other than the President need not be Directors. One Person may hold more than one office.

Section 5.02. Election of Officers. The officers of the Master Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the organization meeting of each new Board of Directors, and each officer shall hold his office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, until he shall resign or be removed or otherwise disqualified to serve or his successor shall be elected and qualified to serve.

Section 5.03. Removal of Officers. Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the entire Board of Directors, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and his successor elected at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors, or at any special meeting of the Board of Directors called for such purpose. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board or to the President or Secretary of the Master Association. Any such resignation shall take effect at the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein; and unless otherwise specified in such notice, acceptance of such resignation by the Board shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 5.04. Compensation. Officers, agents, and employees shall receive such reasonable compensation for their services as may be authorized or ratified by the Board; provided, however, that no officer shall receive any compensation for services performed in the conduct of the Master Association's business unless such compensation is first approved by the vote of Delogates representing at least a majority of the

-15-

362\$5/DGB/05385/16973 kih/01-07-25

MERITTICA JACASOM DE VARCO È PECARNALUEM DUTTAPOPOSE MA voting power of the Master Association; and provided, further, that (1) nothing herein contained shall be construed to preclude any officer from serving the Master Association in some other capacity and receiving compensation therefor, and (2) any officer may be reimbursed for his actual expenses incurred in the performance of such officer's duties. Appointment of any officer, agent, or employee shall not of itself create contractual rights of compensation for services performed by such officer, agent, or employee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no officer, employee or Director of Declarant or a Participating Builder or any affiliate of Declarant or a Participating Builder may receive any compensation.

Section 5.05. President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Master Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Master Association and of the Soard of Directors. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of the President of a corporation, including but not limited to the power, subject to the provisions of Article IV, Section 4.16, to appoint committees from among the Members from time to time as he may in his discretion decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Master Association. The President shall, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, have general supervision, direction and control of the business of the Master Association. The President shall be ex officio a member of all standing committees, and he shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws of the Master Association. The President shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds and other instruments, and shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes. The Architectural Committee shall not be deemed a "standing committee" under this Section 5.05.

Section 5.06. Vice President. The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent, disabled or unable to act. If neither the President nor the Vice President is able to act, the Board of Directors shall appoint some other member of the Board to do so on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be imposed upon him by the Board of Directors or these Sylaws.

Section 5.07. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors and the minutes of all meetings of the Master Association at the principal office of the Master Association or at such other place as the Soard of Directors may order. The Secretary shall keep the seal of the Master Association in safe custody and shall have tharge of such books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct; and the Secretary shall, in general, perform all of the duties incident to the office of Secretary. The Secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notices of meetings of the Master Association and of the Board of Directors required by these Sylaws or by law to be given. The Secretary shall perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws.

Section 5.08. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the thief financial officer of the Master Association and shall

-13-

34255.708 '05345.'14973 klh.'03-12-45

- 1

иверда, изіятням ириачелдзя в ознам эс

. 1

F

85-327173

have responsibility for Master Association funds and securities and shall be responsible for keeping, or causing to be kept, full and accurate accounts of the properties, tax records and business transactions of the Master Association, including accounts of all assets, liabilities, receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Master Association. The Treasurer shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name, and to the credit, of the Master Association in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall disburse the funds of the Master Association as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, shall sign all checks and promissory notes of the Master Association, shall render to the President and Directors, upon request, an account of all of his transactions as Treasurer and of the financial conditions of the Master Association, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws.

ARTICLE VI

OBLIGATIONS OF MEMBERS

Section 6.01. Assessments.

- (a) All Members are obligated to pay, in accordance with the provisions of the Master Declaration, all assessments imposed by the Master Association, to meet all expenses of the Master Association.
- (b) All delinquent Assessments shall be enforced, collected or foreclosed in the manner provided in the Master Declaration.

Section 5.02. Maintenance and Repair.

- (a) Every Member must perform promptly, at his sole cost and expense, all maintenance and repair work on his Lot or within his Condominium, as required under the provisions of the Master Declaration and any applicable Additional Declaration. As further provided in the Master Declaration, all plans for alterations and repair of Improvements on the Properties must receive the prior written consent of the Architectural Committee shall establish reasonable procedures for the granting of such approval, in accordance with the Master Declaration.
- (b) As further provided in the Master Declaration, each Member shall reimburse the Master Association for any expenditures incurred in repairing or replacing any portion of the Association Property or other properties owned or controlled by the Master Association, which are damaged through such Member's willful misconduct or negligence. Such expenditures shall include all court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in enforcing any provision of these Bylaws or the Master Declaration.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

These Bylaws may be amended by the Master Association by the vote of Delegates representing at least fifty-one percent of the voting power of the Master Association; provided that the specified percentage of the Delegates necessary to amend a specific Section or provision of these Bylaws shall not be less than the percentage of affirmative votes prescribed for action to be taken under that Section or provision; and provided, further, that these Bylaws may be amended by a majority of the entire Board, at any time prior to the Close of Escrow for the sale of the first Lot or Condominium to a purchaser from Declarant or a Participating Builder. So long as Declarant and any Participating Builders have effective voting control of the Master Association, any amendment to these Bylaws shall require the prior approval of the Federal Housing Administration and Veterans Administration. The prior written approval of holders of seventy-five percent (75%) of all first Mortgages on Lots and Condominiums in the Properties must be secured before any material amendment to these Bylaws affecting matters delineated in Sections 10.02, 10.03, 13.02(c) or 13.03 of the Master Declaration may take effect, and this sentence may not be amended without such prior written approval. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a first Mortgagee who receives a written request from the Board to approve a proposed amendment or amendments to the Bylaws does not deliver a negative response to the Board within thirty (30) days of the mailing of such request by the Board, such first Mortgagee shall be deemed to have approved the proposed amendment or amendments.

ARTICLE VIII

MORTGAGEES

Section 8.01. Notice to Master Association. Upon request, every Member who mortgages his Lot or Condominium shall notify the Master Association through its Manager, or through the Secretary if there is no Manager, of the name and address of his Mortgagee; and the Master Association shall maintain such information. Upon request, Members shall likewise notify the Master Association as to the release or discharge of any such Mortgage.

Section 8.02. Notice of Unpaid Assessments. The Board of Directors of the Master Association shall at the request of a Mortgagee of a Lot or Condominium report any unpaid assessments due from the Owner of such Lot or Condominium in accordance with the provisions of the Master Declaration.

ARTICLE IX

CONFLICTING PROVISIONS

In case any of these Bylaws conflict with any provisions of the laws of the State of California, such conflicting Bylaws shall be mull and void upon final court determination to such effect, but all other Bylaws shall remain in full force

-18-

36255/DGB/05385/15973 klh/01-07-85

ł

MERITARICA JACKEON DE MANCO E PECKENDAUDA MONTARORODA A VAN CORDANDA and effect. In case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these Sylaws, the Articles of Incorporation shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Master Declaration and these Bylaws, the Master Declaration shall control.

ARTICLE X

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Board of Directors may authorize the Master Association to pay expenses incurred by, or to satisfy a judgment or fine rendered or levied against, any present or former Director, officer, committee member, employee or agent of the Master Association to the extent and under the circumstances provided in the Master Declaration.

ARTICLE XI

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 11.01. Checks, Drafts and Documents. All checks, drafts or other orders for payments of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness, issued in the name of or payable to the Master Association, shall be signed or endorsed by the President and Treasurer of the Master Association, or by such person or persons, and in such manner as, from time to time, shall be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Section 11.02. Execution of Documents. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or agent to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name and on behalf of the Master Association, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances; and unless so authorized by the Board of Directors, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Master Association by any contract or engagement or to piedge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or in any amount.

Saction 11.03. Inspection of Bylavs. The Master Association shall keep in its office for the transaction of business the original or a copy of these Bylavs as amended or otherwise altered to data, certified by the Sacretary, which shall be open to inspection by the Delegates and the Members and all holders, insurers and quarantors of first Mortgages at all reasonable times during regular office hours.

Section 11.04. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Master Association shall be determined by the Board of Directors, and having been so determined, is subject to change from time to time as the Board of Directors shall determine.

Section 11.05. Membership Register. The Master Association shall keep and maintain in its office for the transaction of business (or the office of the Manager) a membership register containing the name and address of each Member. Termination or transfer of any membership shall be recorded in the register, together with the date on which the membership ceased or was transferred, in accordance with the provisions of the Master Declaration.

-:9-

ARTICLE XII

NOTICE AND HEARING PROCEDURE

Section 12.01. Suspension of Privileges. In the event of an alleged violation of the Master Declaration, these Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations of the Master Association, and after written notice of such alleged failure is delivered personally or mailed to the Member or any agent of the Member ("respondent") alleged to be in default in the manner herein provided, by first-class mail or by certified mail return receipt requested, or both, the Board of Directors shall have the right, after affording the respondent an opportunity for an appropriate hearing as hereinafter provided, and upon an affirmative vote of a majority of all Directors on the Board, to take any one or more of the following actions: (1) levy a Special Assessment as provided in the Master Declaration; (2) suspend Assessment as provided in the Master Declaration; (2) suspend or condition the right of such Member to use any recreational facilities owned, operated or maintained by the Master Association; (3) suspend such Member's voting privileges as a Member, as further provided in the Master Declaration; or (4) record a notice of noncompliance encumbering the Lot or Condominium of the respondent. Any such suspension shall be for a period of not more than thirty (30) days for any noncontinuing infraction, but in the case of a continuing infraction (including nonpayment of any assessment after the same becomes delinquent) may be imposed for so long as the violation continues. Suspension of posed for so long as the violation continues. Suspension of membership privileges shall not relieve the Member's obligation to pay all assessments duly issued by the Master Association or to otherwise comply with the Restrictions. The failure of the Board to enforce the Rules and Regulations of the Master Association, these Bylava or the Master Declaration shall not constitute a waiver of the right to enforce the same thereafter. The remedies set forth above and otherwise provided by these Bylaws shall be cumulative and none shall be exclusive. However, any individual Member must exhaust all available internal remedies of the Master Association prescribed by these Bylavs, or by the Rules and Regulations of the Master Association, before that Member may resort to a court of law for relief with respect to any alleged violation of the Master Declaration, these Bylavs or the Rules and Regulations of the Master Association by another Member, provided that the foregoing limitation pertaining to exhausting administrative remedies shall not apply to the Board or to any Member where the complaint alleges non-payment of Annual Assessments, Special Assessments, Capital Improvement Assessments or Reconstruction Assessments.

Section 12.02. Written Complaint. A hearing to determine whether a right or privilege of the respondent under the Master Declaration or these Bylaws should be suspended or conditioned, or whether a Special Assessment should be levied, shall be initiated by the filing of a written Complaint by any Member or by any officer or member of the Board of Directors with the President of the Master Association or other presiding member of the Board. The Complaint shall constitute a written statement of charges which shall set forth in ordinary and concise language the acts or omissions with which the respondent is charged, and a reference to the specific provisions of the Master Declaration, these Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations of the Master Association which the respondent is alleged to have violated. A copy of the Complaint shall be delivered to the respondent in accordance with the notice procedures set

-20-

16255/DGB/GS385/16973 kla/01-07-95

VERITHER JACREDN DE VARCO & PEREVERN A LAW EMPROPRES A LAW forth in the Master Declaration, together with a statement which shall be substantially in the following form:

"Unless a written request for a hearing signed by or on behalf of the person named as respondent in the accompanying Complaint is delivered or mailed to the Board of Directors within fifteen (15) days after the Complaint, the Board of Directors may proceed upon the Complaint without a hearing, and you will have thus waived your right to a hearing. The request for a hearing may be made by delivering (as evidenced by a dated receipt signed by the Master Association's agent) or mailing (by certified mail, return receipt requested) the enclosed form entitled 'Notice of Defense' to the Board of Directors at the following address:

but need not, be represented by counsel at any or all stages of these proceedings. If you desire the names and addresses of witnesses or an opportunity to inspect any relevant writings or items on file in connection with this matter in the possession, custody or control of the Board of Directors, you may contact

The respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits of the matter if the Notice of Defense is timely filed with the Board of Directors. The respondent may file a separate statement by way of mitigation, even if he does not file a Notice of Defense.

Section 12.03. Notice of Hearing. The Board shall serve a notice of hearing, as provided herein, on all parties at least ten (10) days prior to the hearing, if such hearing is requested by the respondent. The hearing shall be held no scener than thirty (30) days after the Complaint is mailed or delivered to the respondent as provided in Section 12.02 of this Article XII. The notice to the respondent shall be in substantially the following form but may include other information:

"You are hereby notified that a hearing will be held before the Board of Directors of the Rancho San Clemente Community Association at

-21-

36255.7002/05385/15973 klb/01-07-85

MERITANCE JACKSON
DO MARCO & PECKENPAUGH
& WAS COMPOSITION

business days prior to the hearing date) the attendance of witnesses and the production of books, documents or other items by applying to the Board of Directors of the Master Association.

Section 12.04. Hearing. The hearing shall be held before the Board in executive session pursuant to this notice affording the Nember a reasonable opportunity to be heard. Prior to the effectiveness of any sanction hereunder, proof of notice, and the invitation to be heard shall be placed in the minutes of the meeting. Such proof shall be deemed adequate if a copy of the notice together with a statement of the date and manner of delivery is entered by the officer or director who mailed or delivered such notice. The notice requirement shall be deemed satisfied if a violator appears at the meeting. The minutes of the meeting shall contain a written statement of the results of the hearing and the sanction, if any, imposed. No action against the Namber arising from the alleged violation shall take effect prior to the expiration of (a) fifteen (15) days after the Member's receipt of the notice of hearing, and (b) five (5) days after the hearing required herein.

-22-

16253/DGB/C3195/16973 klb/01-07-35

WENTER JACKSON
HOUSE STANKED

O WAS ESPECIALLY

.

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

- I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that:
- 1. I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of RANCHO SAN CLEMENTE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, a California nonprofit corporation ("Master Association"); and

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my hand affixed the seal of the Master Association this _____ day of ______, 1985.

Secretary

(SEAL)

-23 -

36258/DGB/OS385/18973 dnl/O1-07-85

WERITTRICH MCHECH
DE MARCO & PECKENPAUGH
A LAW ESMAGATHON

EXHIBIT "E"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ANNEXABLE AREA

All that certain real property located in the City of San Clemente, County of Orange, California described as follows:

Parcel No. 1 [Annexable Area owned by Initial Participating Builder]

Lots 2, 5, 6, 7, F and C of Tract No. 12283, as shown on a Subdivision Map, recorded on May 17, 1985, in Book \$40, Pages 6 to 13, inclusive, of Miscellaneous Maps, in the Office of the Orange County Recorder.

Parcel No. 2 (Annexable Area Owned by Declarant)

In the City of San Clemente, County of Orange, State of California being a portion of Tract No. 12124, as shown on a Map recorded in Book 532, Pages 1 through 10, inclusive, of Miscellaneous Maps; in the Office of the County Recorder of said County; and those portions of Sections 27, 26, 34 and 35, Township 8 south, range 7 west, San Bernardino meridian according to an official plat of said land filed in the District Land office January 1, 1874 and included within the land shown on the Map of said Tract No. 12124 described as follows:

Beginning at the centerline intersection of Avenida Pico and Avenida Presidio as shown on the Map of said Tract No. 12124; thence along the centerline of said Avenida Pico north 46°00'18" east 71.82 feet to the true point of boginning; thence continuing along said centerline north 46°00'18" east 428.02 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve concave southwesterly and having a radius of 2000.00 feet; thence northwesterly along said curve through a central angle of 03°00'00" an arc distance of 104.72 feet; thence tangent to said curve north 43°00'18" east 220.08 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve concave northeasterly and having a radius of 2000.00 feet; thence northwesterly along said curve through a central angle of 03°00'00" an arc distance of 104.72 feet; thence tangent to said north 46°00'18" east 177.40 feet to the intersection of said Avenida Pico and Calle Del Cerro as shown on the Map of said Tract No. 12124; thence in a northeasterly direction across said land the following courses: south 80°13'54" east 90.51 feet; thence north 75°52'16" east 1221.63 feet; thence north 56°53'19" east 274.59 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve concave northwesterly and having a radius of 200.00 feet; a radial bearing from said curve to said point bears south 23°07'48" east; thence northeasterly along said curve through a central angle of 60°00'00" an arc distance of 209.44 feet to a point; a radial bearing from said curve to said point bears south 83°07'48" east; thence non-tangent to said curve north 69°00'54" east 781.86 feet; thence north 84°17'22" east 201.00 feet; thence north 73°32'24" east 458.80 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve concave southeasterly and having a radius of 640.00 feet; a radial bearing from said curve to said point bears north 55°45'49" west; thence northeasterly along said curve through a central angle of 82°47'53" an arc distance of 924.86 feet to a point; a radial bearing from said curve to said curve through a central angle of 82°47'53" an arc distance of 924.86 fee

3545S/DGB/OS26S/16973 dnl/07-26-85

MERITTRICK JACKSON

DE MAÑCO À PECHENPAUGH

A LAW COSPORATION

curve concave southwesterly and having a radius of 1000.00 feet; a radial bearing from said curve through said point bears north 05°16'24" west; thence easterly along said curve through a central angle of 27°29'20" an arc distance of 479.77 feet to a point; a radial bearing from said curve through said point bears north 22°12'56" east; thence non-tangent to said curve north 77°28'16" east 737.56 feet; thence south 55°12'33" east 483.77 feet; thence south 29°59'55" west 18.29 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve concave northwesterly and having a radius of 1600.00 feat; thence southwesterly along said curve through a central angle of 05°16'38" an arc distance of 147.37 feet; thence tangent to said curve south 35°16'33" west 230.82 feet; thence south 54°43'27" east 30.00 feet; thence south 50°23'13" east 1070.82 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve concave southwesterly and having a radius of 500.00 feet; a radial bearing from said curve to said point bears north 06°35'40" wast; thence southeasterly along said curve through a central angle of 72°52'27" an arc distance of 635.95 feet to a point; a radial bearing from said curve through said point bears point; a radial bearing from said curve through said point bears north 66°16'47" east; thence non-tangent to said curve south 71°18'46" east 681.40 feet; thence north 52°43'55" east 453.02 feet; thence north 21°05'32" west 150.05 feet; thence north 38°24'48" east 327.43 feet; thence north 32°46'50" east 60.00 feet to the beginning of a curve concave northeasterly and having a radius of 1000.00 feet; a radial bearing from said point to said curve bears north 32°46'50" east; thence easterly along said curve through a central angle of 33°33'02" an arc distance of 585.57 feet; thence tangent to said curve north 89°13'48" east 932.00 feet to a point on the westerly line of Rancho Santa Margarita as shown on the Map of said Tract No. 12124; said line also being the boundary line between the City of San Clemente and San Diego County; said point bears south 13°13'16" west 2907.95 feet from the northeasterly terminus of that certain course shown as "north 13°13'16" east 24,377.14 feet (CALC)" on the Map of said Tract No. 12124; thence southwesterly along said westerly line south 13°13'16" west 6771.30 feet; thence north 70°42'15" west 3654.17 feet to the most easterly corner of that certain parcel of land as granted to the City of San Clements in deed recorded in Book 6108, Page 233 (Parcel 2) of Official Records; thence along the northeasterly line of said parcel north 46°20'58" west 215.00 feet to the northerly corner of said parcel; said point also being on the easterly line of Tract No. 10579, in the City of San Clemente, County of Orange, State of California as shown on a Map filed in Book 485, Pages 39 through 45, inclusive, of Miscellaneous Maps in the Office of the County Recorder of said county; thence in a general northwesterly direction along said easterly line the following courses; north 04°28'24" east 452.17 feet to the beginning of curve concave northwesterly and having a radius of 43.00 feet; a radial bearing from said point to said curve bears north 04°28'24" east; thence northeastarly along said curve through a central angle of 117°09'48" an arc distance of 87.93 feet; thence radial to said curve north 67°18'36" east 91.99 feet; thence north 09°29'13" west 327.80 feet; thence north 67°14'55" west 1657.57 feet to a point on the easterly line of Lot 180 of Tract No. 898 in the City of San Clemente, County of Orange, State of California, as shown on a Map recorded in Book 28, Pages 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Miscellaneous Maps, Records of Orange County, California; thence northwesterly along last mentioned easterly line north 01°07'57" east 104.41 feet; thence north 48°51'05" west 317.88 feet; thence north 71°07'09" west 530.36 feet; thence north 14°43'00" east 598.28 feet; thence north 20°42'55" west 118.04 feet; thence north 30°42'52" west 206.79 feet to the most southerly corner of Lot D of

> 35455/T08/05265/16973 ab/07-25-85

MCKITRICK JACKSON

DE MARGO & *ECKEMPAUGH

A JAW COMPANON

said Tract No. 12124; thence in a westerly direction along the southerly line of said tract the following courses: north 60°42'29" west 261.38 feet; thence north 49°40'24" west 550.10 feet; thence south 40°13'42" west 355.00 feet; thence north 44°31'14" west 469.97 feet; thence north 74°11'23" west 743.53 feet; thence south 64°43'41" west 457.31 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve concave southeasterly and having a radius of 290.00 feet; thence southwesterly along said curve through a central angle of 33°26'56" an arc distance of 169.30 feet; thence tangent to said curve north 80°08'55" west 40.86 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve concave southeasterly and having a radius of 280.00 feet; thence northeasterly along said curve through a central angle of 40°56'33" an arc distance of 200.08 feet; thence tangent to said curve north 50°47'38" east 159.02 feet to the beginning of a tangent curve concave northwesterly and having a radius of 270.00 feet; thence northeasterly along said curve through a central angle of 26°48'29" an arc distance of 126.33 feet to the beginning of a compound curve concave northwesterly and having a radius of 167.00 feet; thence northeasterly to and from said curves through a central angle of 103°19'30" an arc distance of 301.16 feet to a point; a radial bearing from said curve to said point bears north 10°39'39" east; thence non-tangent to said curve north 45°59'18" east 39.89 feet; thence non-tangent to said curve north 43°59'42" west 259.71 feet; thence non-th 84°01'12" west 880.00 feet; thence north 84°01'12" west 2.61 feet to the true point of beginning.

Containing 977.185 acres, more or less.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM, Parcel No. 1 above and the First Subdivision.

3545S/DGB/C526S/16973 ab/07-25-85

MERITIFICK JACKEDM DE MARCE DE CORMANDE MORARGE DE LA LA MEDIRO DE MEDIRO DE LA MEDIRO DEL MEDIRO DE LA MEDIRO DE LA MEDIRO DE LA MEDIRO DE LA MEDIRO DEL MEDIRO DEL MEDIRO DE LA MEDIRO DE LA MEDIRO DE LA MEDIRO DEL



I, MARCH FONG EU, Secretary of State of the State of California, hereby certify:

That the annexed transcript has been compared with the record on file in this office, of which it purports to be a copy, and that same is full, true and correct.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I execute this certificate and affix the Great Seal of the State of California this

MAY 3 1985



March Forcy Eu

Secretary of State

341 974*E F04** CE-107

4 ...;

BNWWNGED FILED Is far with as the arrival of State of the Indiana

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF

1813 395

RANCHO SAN CLEMENTE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

Sheron K. Howkins

ONE: The name of this corporation ("Master Asso-") clation" herein) is RANCHO SAN CLEMENTE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION.

TWO: This corporation is a nonprofit mutual benefit corporation organized under the Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law. The purpose of this corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which a corporation may be organized under the Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law.

THREE: The Master Association's initial agent for service of process is Stephen C. Maloney, whose business address is 3151 Airway Drive, Suite I-2, Costa Mosa, California 92626-4167.

FOUR: The Master Association shall have and exercise any and all powers, rights, and privileges which a corporation organized under the Nonprofit Mutual Benefit Corporation Law may now or hereafter have or exercise, provided that the Master Association shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the following purposes of the Master Association:

(a) To bring about civic betterments and social improvements by providing for the preservation, sanagement, maintenance, and care of the architecture and appearance of a planned residential development known as Rancho San Clemente ("Properties"), located in the City of San Clemente, County of Orange, State of California.

(b) To promote the common good, health, safety, and general welfare of all of the residents within the Properties.

(C) To exercise all of the powers and privileges and to perform all of the duties and obligations of the Master Association arising from that certain Master Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions and Reservation of Easements for Rancho San Clemente (the "Master Declaration") recorded or to be recorded with the Orange County Recorder and applicable to the Properties, as such Master Declaration may be amended from time to time.

FIVE: The classes of Membership and the voting and other rights and privileges of Members shall be as set forth in the Sylaws. Amendment of these Articles of Incorporation shall require approval of the Board of Directors and the vote or written consent of both (1) Delegates representing at least a majority of the total voting power of the Master Association, and (2) Delegates representing at least a majority of the voting power of the Master Association residing in Members other than the Subdivider ("Declarant") and all Participating Builders (as defined in the Master Declaration) of the Properties. In addition to the foregoing, as long as there exists a Class A and a Class B Membership, amendment of these Articles shall require the vote or written consent of Delegates representing at least a majority of the voting power of each such Class of Members.

-1-

35469/DCB/05265/16973 klb/01-07-85

MCMITTRICK, JACKSON
O4 MARCO & PECKENPAUGH
A WARCO & PECKENPAUGH

The undersigned, who is the incorporator of the Master Association, has executed these Articles of Incorporation on May 1 , 1985.

Stephen C. Maloney

I hereby declare that I am the person who executed the foregoing Articles of Incorporation, which execution is my act and deed.

Stephen C. Maloney

-2-

35465/DGB/05268/16973 klh/01-07-85

MERITTHER, MERISON. DE MARCO & PEGRENPAUGN A LAN COMPOSATION

.....